
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 

Meeting Venue: 
Committee Room 2 - Senedd 

 

 

 

Meeting date: 
17 October 2011  

 

Meeting time: 
14:30 

 

For further information please contact:  

Steve George 
Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8242 
CLA.Committee@wales.gov.uk  

Olga Lewis 
Deputy Committee Clerk 
029 2089 8154 

 
 

 

Agenda 

 

1. Introduction, apologies, substitutions and declarations of interest   

2. Instruments that raise no reporting issues under Standing Order 
21.2 or 21.3   

Negative Resolution Instruments 
 
None 
 
 

Affirmative Resolution Instruments 
 
None 

3. Instruments that raise issues to be reported to the Assembly 
under Standing Order 21.2 or 21.3   

Negative Resolution Instruments 
 

 
CLA46 - The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying Procedures 
(Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2011  (Pages 1 - 17) 
Negative Procedure. Date made 3 October 2011. Date laid 4 October 2011. Coming 
into force date 1 April 2012 
 
 

Public Document Pack



Affirmative Resolution Instruments 
 
None 

4. Committee Correspondence   

 
CLA20 - The Beef and Pig Carcase Classification (Wales) Regulations 2011  (Pages 
18 - 19) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p1) – Letter from the Chair to the Minister dated 23 September 2011 
CLA(4)-08-11(p2) – The Minister’s response dated 1 October 2011 

 
 
 

CLA31 - The National Curriculum (Assessment Arrangements on Entry to the 
Foundation Phase) (Wales) Order 2011  (Pages 20 - 27) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p3) – Letter from the Chair to the Minister dated 27 September 2011 

CLA(4)-08-11(p3) – Annex 1 (CLA31 Report) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p3) – Annex 2 (CLA32 Report) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p4) – The Minister’s response dated 4 October 2011 

 
 
 

CLA42 - The Protection from Tobacco (Sales from Vending Machines) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011  (Pages 28 - 30) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p5) – Letter from the Chair to the Minister dated 5 October 2011 
CLA(4)-08-11(p6) – The Minister’s response dated 11 October 2011 

 
 
 

CLA19 - The Head Teachers' Qualifications and Registration (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2011  (Pages 31 - 35) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p7) – Letter from the Chair to the Minister dated 27 September 2011 

CLA(4)-08-11(p7) – Annex (CLA19 Report) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p8) – The Minister’s response dated 10 October 2011 

 
 
 

CLA17 - The National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and Redress 
Arrangements) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2011  (Pages 36 - 40) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p9) – Letter from the Chair to the Minister dated 27 September 2011 

CLA(4)-08-11(p9) – Annex (CLA17 Report) 
CLA(4)-08-11(p10) – The Minister’s response dated 11October 2011 

 
 

5. Committee Inquiries: Inquiry into the Granting of Powers to Welsh 
Ministers in UK Laws   

 
Evidence session with David Davies MP and Paul Evans   
David Davies MP, Chair, Welsh Affairs Committee  



Paul Evans, Clerk of the Table Office, House of Commons 
 
 

6. Date of the next meeting  (Pages 41 - 54)  
Supporting documents:  

7. Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 
public from the meeting for the following business: 
 
    

A Committee may resolve to exclude the public from a meeting or any part of a 
meeting where: 

(vi) the Committee is deliberating on the conclusions or recommendations of a report 
it proposes to publish 

  

8. Consideration of the evidence submitted to Inquiry to date   



Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
(CLA(4)-08-11) 
 
CLA46 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Draft Report 
 
Title: The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying 
Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
Procedure:  Negative 

 
These Regulations prescribe the standard daily amounts which may be 
recovered by the Welsh Ministers for each day on which— 
(a) a local inquiry sits or the person appointed to hold the local 
inquiry is otherwise engaged on work connected with it; or 
(b) the person appointed to undertake a qualifying inquiry or, as the 
case may be, a qualifying procedure is engaged on work connected 
with the qualifying inquiry or qualifying procedure. 
 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument. 
 
Merits Scrutiny 
 
Regulatory Impact Assessment 
 
The Explanatory Memorandum says that a Regulatory Impact 
Assessment (RIA) is “Not required as the revision of the Regulation is 
to make increases in statutory fees.”  However, when these fees were 
uprated last (in 2007) an RIA was provided.     
 
Calculation of New Fee Levels 
 
There is no information in the Explanatory Memorandum to explain 
how the increases in fees have been calculated, the total amount of 
extra income that it is estimated will be raised as a result and the 
impact this will have on local authority and Welsh Government budgets 
and funding as a result.   
 
Committee Consideration 
 
The Committee is concerned at the lack of explanation for the above 
matters contained in the Explanatory Memorandum and at the lack of a 
Regulatory Impact Assessment.  The Committee is of the view that when 
subordinate legislation imposes new or increased fees or charges on 

Agenda Item 3.1

Page 1



public or private bodies or individuals this should be accompanied by a 
self-contained explanation of how the fees or charges have been 
calculated and their wider impact on the bodies or people the changes 
affect.  The Committee agrees that the information provided in the 
Explanatory Memorandum is inadequate for this purpose.  
 
The Committee agreed that this raises a matter of public policy likely to 
be of interest to the Assembly and agreed to draw the matter to the 
attention of the Assembly through a report under Standing Order 
21.3(ii).   
 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
October 2011 

Page 2



 

 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  

I N S T R U M E N T S  

2011 No. 2415 (W.261 ) 

TRIBUNALS AND INQUIRIES, 

WALES 

TOWN AND COUNTRY 

PLANNING, WALES 

The Local Inquiries, Qualifying 

Inquiries and Qualifying Procedures 

(Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) 

Regulations 2011 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations apply where the Welsh Ministers 

are authorised to recover from local authorities costs 

borne by the Welsh Ministers in connection with: 

(a) inquiries held under section 250 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 (including compulsory 

purchase order inquiries to which relevant 

provisions of that section are applied by 

section 5 of the Acquisition of Land Act 

1981) and section 69 of the Land Drainage 

Act 1991 (“local inquiries”);  

(b) qualifying inquiries as defined by section 
303A(1) of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (inquiries held in relation to Unitary 

Development Plans and consideration of 

objections to simplified planning zone 

schemes) (“qualifying inquiries”); and 

(c) qualifying procedures as defined by section 

303A (1A) of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (independent examinations held in 

relation to Local Development Plans and 

inquiries in relation to consideration of 

objections to simplified planning zone 

schemes) (“qualifying procedures”). 

 

Page 3



 

 2

These Regulations prescribe the standard daily 

amounts which may be recovered by the Welsh 

Ministers for each day on which— 

(a) a local inquiry sits or the person appointed to 

hold the local inquiry is otherwise engaged on 

work connected with it; or 

(b) the person appointed to undertake a qualifying 
inquiry or, as the case may be, a qualifying 

procedure is engaged on work connected with 

the qualifying inquiry or qualifying 

procedure. 

The standard daily amount in relation to local 

inquiries opening on or after 1 April 2012 is £742. 

This replaces the amount of £722, which was 

prescribed by the Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries 

and Qualifying Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) 

(Wales) Regulations 2007 (S.I. 2007/728) (W.64) (“the 

2007 Regulations”) for inquiries opening on or after 1 

April 2007. 

The standard daily amount in relation to qualifying 

inquiries opening on or after 1 April 2012 is £679. 

This is the same as the amount previously prescribed 

by the 2007 Regulations for qualifying inquiries 

opening on or after 1 April 2007. 

The standard daily amount in relation to qualifying 

procedures opening on or after 1 April 2012 is £679. 

This replaces the amount of £640 which was 

prescribed by the 2007 Regulations for qualifying 

procedures opening on or after 1 April 2007. 

These Regulations revoke the 2007 Regulations, but 

make savings in respect of local inquiries and 

qualifying inquiries which opened before 1 April 2012   

and which remain open, and in respect of qualifying 

procedures which started before 1 April 2012 and 

which remain ongoing. 

Page 4



 

 3

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  

I N S T R U M E N T S  

2011 No. 2415 (W.261) 

TRIBUNALS AND INQUIRIES, 

WALES 

TOWN AND COUNTRY 

PLANNING, WALES 

The Local Inquiries, Qualifying 

Inquiries and Qualifying Procedures 

(Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) 

Regulations 2011 

Made 3 October 2011 

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales           

4 October 2011 

Coming into force 1 April 2012 

The Welsh Ministers make the following Regulations 

in exercise of the powers conferred: 

(a) by section 42(4) of the Housing and Planning 

Act 1986 (“the 1986 Act”)(1) on any Minister 

authorised, under or by virtue of those 

statutory provisions specified in section 

42(1)(2) of that Act or to which that section is 

applied(3) to recover costs incurred by the 

                                                                               
(1) 1986 c.63. 
(2) Section 42(1)(b) was repealed by Part 1 of Schedule 3 to the 

Water Consolidation (Consequential Provisions) Act 1991 
(c.60) and section 42(1)(d) was repealed by Part 2 of 
Schedule 12 to the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 
(c.42). Section 129(1)(d) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 
1984 (c.27) (costs of inquiry under that Act), referred to in 
section 42(1)(c) of the 1986 Act, was repealed by Schedule 3 
to the Inquiries Act 2005 (c.12). 

(3) Section 69(7) of the Land Drainage Act 1991 (c.59) (“the 
1991 Act”) provides that section 42 of the 1986 Act applies 
where either of “the Ministers” is authorised by section 69(5) 
of the 1991 Act to recover costs incurred by that Minister in 
relation to an inquiry held by the Minister as it applies where 
a Minister is authorised by virtue of any enactment specified 
in section 42(1) of the 1986 Act. See section 72(1) of the 
1991 Act and the Ministry of Agriculture, Fisheries and 
Food (Dissolution) Order 2002 (S.I. 2002/794) for the 

 

Page 5



 

 4

Minister in relation to an inquiry, which 

powers are now exercisable by the Welsh 

Ministers(1); 

(b) upon the Secretary of State by section 

303A(5) of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 (“the 1990 Act”)(2) and now 

exercisable, in relation to the areas of certain 

local planning authorities within Wales by the 

Welsh Ministers(3); and 

(c) upon the National Assembly, as the 

appropriate authority, by section 303A(5) of 

the 1990 Act(4) which powers are now 

exercisable by the Welsh Ministers(5). 

Title, commencement and application 

1.—(1) The title of these Regulations is the Local 

Inquiries Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying 

Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) 

Regulations 2011 and they come into force on 1 April 

2012. 

(2) These Regulations apply in relation to Wales. 

Interpretation 

2. In these Regulations— 

“local inquiry” (“ymchwiliad lleol”) means an 

inquiry in relation to which the Welsh Ministers 

are entitled to recover their costs under or by virtue 

of section 250(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972(6) (general provision as to costs of inquiries) 

                                                                               
definition of “the Ministers” i.e. the Secretary of State or the 
Minister of Agriculture, Fisheries and Food. 

(1)  The functions under section 42 of the 1986 Act were 
transferred to the National Assembly for Wales by article 2 
of, and Schedule 1 to, the National Assembly for Wales 
(Transfer of Functions) Order 2000 (S.I. 2000/253 (W.5)) to 
be exercised in relation to Wales concurrently with any 
Minister of the Crown. The functions were transferred to the 
Welsh Ministers by section 162 of, and paragraph 30 of 
Schedule 11 to, the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c.32).  

(2) 1990 c.8. Section 303A was inserted into the 1990 Act by 
section 1(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Costs of 
Inquiries etc.) Act 1995 (c.49) which was itself repealed by 
the Statute Law (Repeals) Act 2008 (c.12). 

(3) The functions under section 303A(5) of the 1990 Act were 
transferred to the National Assembly for Wales by the 
National Assembly for Wales (Transfer of Functions) Order 
1999 (S.I. 1999/672) as varied by the National Assembly for 
Wales (Transfer of Functions) Order 2000 article 4. The 
functions were transferred to the Welsh Ministers by section 
162 of, and paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to, the Government 
of Wales Act 2006. 

(4) Section 303A(5) was amended in relation to the areas of 
certain planning authorities within Wales by section 118(1) 
of, and paragraph 11 of Schedule 6 to, the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (c.5). 

(5) The functions were transferred to the Welsh Ministers by 
section 162 of, and paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to, the 
Government of Wales Act 2006. 

(6) 1972 c.70. The functions under section 250(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 were transferred to the National 
Assembly for Wales by the National Assembly for Wales 

 

Page 6



 

 5

or section 69(5) of the Land Drainage Act 

1991(1)(costs of an inquiry under that Act); 

 “qualifying inquiry” (“ymchwiliad cymwys”) 

means a qualifying inquiry within the meaning of 

that term in section 303A(1) of the 1990 Act 

(insofar as that section continues to have effect 

without the amendment inserted by section 118 of, 

and paragraph 11(2) of Schedule 6 to, the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (“the 2004 

Act”)) and held in relation to the area of a local 

planning authority in respect of which the 

provisions set out in Schedule 2 to the Planning 

and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 

(Commencement No. 6, Transitional Provisions 

and Savings) Order 2005(2) continue to have 

effect in accordance with article 3(3) of that Order; 

“qualifying procedure” (“gweithdrefn gymwys”) 

means a qualifying procedure within the meaning 

of that term in section 303A(1A) of the 1990 

Act(3) and held in relation to the area of a local 

planning authority in respect of which the repeals 

set out in Schedule 1 to the Planning and 

Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (Commencement 

No. 6, Transitional Provisions and Savings) Order 

2005 have effect in accordance with article 2(g) of 

that Order. 

Persons, inquiries and procedures to which these 

Regulations apply 

3. These Regulations apply in relation to— 

(a) a local inquiry; and 

                                                                               
(Transfer of Functions) Order 1999 (S.I. 1999/672) as varied 
by the National Assembly for Wales (Transfer of Functions) 
Order 2000, article 4. The functions were transferred to the 
Welsh Ministers by paragraph 30 of Schedule 11 to the 
Government of Wales Act 2006. 

(1) 1991 c.59. 
(2) S.I. 2005/2847 (C.118). By article 2(e) of the Order, the 

amendment of section 303A of the 1990 Act made by the 
2004 Act came into force in relation to Wales on 12 October 
2005. However, by article 3(3) of that Order, the provisions 
of section 303A as inserted by the Town and Country 
Planning (Costs of Inquiries etc.) Act 1995 remain in force 
in relation to the areas of local planning authorities to whom 
the provisions in the 1990 Act relating to the preparation, 
alteration and replacement of unitary development plans 
continue to apply. The general effect of the several 
provisions referred to above is that where a local planning 
authority in Wales is subject to the local development plan 
regime, an independent examination will be held and the 
Welsh Ministers will have power to prescribe a standard 
daily amount in relation to it. Where a local planning 
authority continues to be subject to the unitary development 
plan regime, however, a local inquiry will, where 
appropriate, be held and the Welsh Ministers will continue to 
have power to prescribe a standard daily amount in relation 
to it. 

(3) Section 303(1A) was inserted into the 1990 Act by section 
118 of, and paragraph 11 of Schedule 6 to, the 2004 Act. 

Page 7



 

 6

(b) any person appointed by the Welsh Ministers 

to hold, or as one of the persons so appointed 

who are to hold, a qualifying inquiry; and 

(c) any person appointed by the Welsh Ministers 

to hold a qualifying procedure. 

Standard daily amount for local inquiries 

4. The standard daily amount prescribed pursuant to 

section 42(4) of the 1986 Act for a local inquiry 

opening on or after 1 April 2012 is £742. 

Standard daily amount for qualifying inquiries 

5. The standard daily amount prescribed pursuant to 

section 303A(5) of the 1990 Act for a qualifying 

inquiry opening on or after 1 April 2012 is £679. 

Standard daily amount for qualifying procedures 

6. The standard daily amount prescribed pursuant to 

section 303A(5) of the 1990 Act for a qualifying 

procedure opening on or after 1 April 2012 is £679. 

Revocations and savings 

7. The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and 

Qualifying Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) 

(Wales) Regulations 2007(1) are revoked, otherwise 

than in relation to an inquiry to which those 

Regulations applied and which opened before, and 

remains open after 1 April 2012 and in relation to a 

qualifying procedure which started before, and remains 

ongoing after 1 April 2012. 

 
 

 

John Griffiths 

 

Minister for Environment and Sustainable 

Development, one of the Welsh Ministers 

 

3 October 2011 

                                                                               
(1) S.I. 2007/728 (W.64). 

Page 8



 

 1

Explanatory Memorandum to Tribunals and Inquiries, Wales Town and 
Country Planning, Wales, The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and 
Qualifying Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
This Explanatory Memorandum has been prepared by the Department for 
Environment and Sustainable Development and is laid before the National 
Assembly for Wales in conjunction with the above subordinate legislation and in 
accordance with Standing Order 27.1  
 
Minister’s Declaration 
 
In my view, this Explanatory Memorandum gives a fair and reasonable view of 
the expected impact of Tribunals and Inquiries, Wales Town and Country 
Planning, Wales, The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying 
Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
 
John Griffiths 

Minister for Environment and Sustainable Development 
3 October 2011 
 

Page 9



 

 2

1. Description 

 
Planning Inspectorate Wales Inspectors carry out a wide range of work and for 
some of this work, which it undertakes on behalf of a local planning authority 
(lpa), the Inspectorate charges for providing an Inspector.  This includes Local 
Development Plan examinations and work on Compulsory Purchase Orders.  
These Regulations allow for the current fees to be increased. 

2. Matters of special interest to the Constitutional Affairs Committee   

 
There are none. 

3. Legislative background 

 

The powers enabling this Instrument to be made are set out in Section 303A of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as inserted by Section 1 of the Town 
and Country Planning (Costs of Inquiries etc.) Act 1995.  The power to make 
Regulations applying the right to recover costs incurred by the Minister in 
relation to an inquiry and prescribing the standard daily amount is set out in 
Sections 42(1) and (4) of the Housing and Planning Act 1996.  These powers 
are now exercisable by the Welsh Ministers by virtue of paragraph 30 of 
Schedule 11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006. 
 
This statutory instrument follows the negative resolution procedure.  

4. Purpose & intended effect of the legislation 

The Planning Inspectorate is an Agency of the Welsh Government and the 
Department for Communities and Local Government. Its work in Wales is 
funded by the Welsh Government.  

Although Planning Inspectors are associated primarily with the planning appeal 
process they carry out a wide range of work; for some of this work the 
Inspectorate charges the Local Planning Authority for providing an Inspector.  
This includes Local Development Plan examinations and Compulsory Purchase 
Orders.  In accordance with the direction contained in the Treasury Fees and 
Charges Guide Government, agencies are required to aim to recover the full 
costs of their rechargeable activities.  Consequently, there is a need to revise 
these fees.  

In May 2009 the then Welsh Assembly Government sought the views of the 
Welsh Local Government Association, the Royal Town Planning Institute, the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Planning Officers' Society Wales 
and local planning authorities on a proposal to increase the daily fees for local 
development plan work and for other rechargeable work by Planning 
Inspectors.  Taking account of the comments received the Minister for 
Environment Sustainability and Housing agreed that the charges should be 
increased as per the proposal. 

The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying Procedures (Standard 
Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2007 provided that the daily rate to be paid 

Page 10



 

 3

by a local planning authority to the Planning Inspectorate for providing an 
Inspector to hold an inquiry, opened on or after 1st April 2007 (Statutory 
Instrument 2007 No.728 (W.64)) into compulsory purchase orders, etc made 
under various enactments shall be £722.  These regulations now need to be 
amended in order to progress towards full costs recovery and the daily rate will 
need be increased by £20 to £742 per day. 

Part 6 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides for a 
reformed development plan system.  With effect from Autumn 2005 local 
planning authorities are required to prepare and maintain up-to-date local 
development plans.  These are examined by Planning Inspectors and the daily 
rate for full costs recovery in relation to those examinations was previously set 
at £640 by the Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying Procedures 
(Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2007.  This rate will be increased 
by £39 to £679. 

5. Consultation  

On 13 May 2009 the then Welsh Assembly Government sought the views of the 
Welsh Local Government Association, the Royal Town Planning Institute, the 
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Planning Officers' Society Wales 
and local planning authorities on a proposal to increase the daily fees for local 
development plan work and for other rechargeable work by Planning 
Inspectors.  The consultation lasted six weeks and focussed on organisations 
directly affected by the proposals.   
 
Eight responses were received from Ynys Mon County Council, Cardiff County 
Council, Vale of Glamorgan Council, Caerphilly County Borough Council, 
Darren Millar AM, Brecon Beacons NPA, Pembrokeshire County Council and 
City and County of Swansea.  Most respondents, although not happy with the 
increases, understood why they were being proposed and were generally 
supportive of them as they were in line with inflation.  Darren Millar AM felt that 
there should be no increase at all due to the financial challenges faced by Local 
Authorities.  Apart from the increases in fees no other changes were made to 
the Regulations as a result of the consultation responses. 

Taking account of the comments received, the then Minister for Environment 
Sustainability and Housing agreed to amend the current Regulations to reflect 
the increase in charges that were outlined in the above consultation.   
 
6. Regulatory Impact Assessment (RIA)  
 
Not required as the revision of the Regulation is to make increases in 
statutory fees.  

 

 

Page 11



Y Pwyllgor Materion 
Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol 
 
Constitutional and Legislative 
Affairs Committee  
 

 

Alun Davies AM, 
Deputy Minister for Agriculture, 
Fisheries, Food and European 
Programmes, 
Welsh Government, 
5th Floor, Tŷ Hywel, 
Cardiff Bay, 
CF99 1NA. 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

 
 
 
 
 

23 September  2011 
 

Dear Alun,  

 
CLA20 - The Beef and Pig Carcase Classification (Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
The Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee considered the above 
Statutory Instrument at its meeting on 19 September 2011.  A copy of 
Committee’s report on the Regulations is attached for information.   
 
The Committee was grateful for the Government’s willingness to correct the 
two technical reporting points identified, the first upon publication and the 
second by way of an amendment to the regulations.  However, the Committee 
would be grateful if you could clarify the proposed timescale for bringing 
forward the amending regulations to correct the technical reporting point in 
respect of Regulation 2(1). 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 12



Page 13



Y Pwyllgor Materion 
Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol 
 
Constitutional and Legislative 
Affairs Committee  
 

 

Leighton Andrews AM  
Minister for Education and Skills  

Welsh Government 
5th Floor 
Tŷ Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

 
 
 
 

27 September  2011 
 

 
Dear Minister  

 
CLA31 - The National Curriculum (Assessment Arrangements on Entry to 
the Foundation Phase) (Wales) Order 2011 
 
And; 
 
CLA32 - The National Curriculum (End of Foundation Phase Assessment 
Arrangements and Revocation of the First Key Stage Assessment 
Arrangements) (Wales) Order 2011 
 
The Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee considered the above 
Statutory Instruments at its meeting on 19 September 2011 and agreed that I 
should bring to your attention the Committee’s reports made under Standing 
Order 21.3 on the merits of the Instruments.  
 
The Committee agreed to invite the Assembly to pay special attention to these 
Instruments on the grounds that they are “of political or legal importance or 
give rise to issues of public policy likely to be of interest to the Assembly” 
(Standing Order 21.3(ii)). 
 
The Committee’s reports were laid in the Table Office on 23 September 2011 
and is attached for information. I would be grateful if you could consider the 
report and let the Committee have your response in due course.   
 
You will note that the Committee concluded that article 5 of the Order contains 
an unusual provision that allows the Welsh Ministers to make further provision 
about the Order without the need to make an amending Order that would be 
subject to Assembly scrutiny. The Committee would be grateful for clarification 
on whether Ministers have any current intention to use the powers under article 
5 and, if the power is used in future, whether you would consider keeping 
Assembly Members informed by publishing a written statement on the matter. 
 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 14



I am copying this report to the First Minister for information and have also 
arranged for the report and this letter to be drawn to the attention of Assembly 
Members. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  

Page 15



Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
(CLA(4)-05-11) 
 
CLA31 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Report  

 
Title: The National Curriculum (Assessment Arrangements on 
Entry to the Foundation Phase) (Wales) Order 2011 
 
Procedure:  Negative 

 
Under section 108(2)(b)(iii) of the Education Act 2002 the Welsh 
Ministers may specify, by order, such assessment arrangements as 
they consider appropriate for the foundation phase. This Order sets 
out those arrangements.   
 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument. 
 
Merits Scrutiny 
 
The Assembly is invited to pay special attention under Standing Order 
21.3(ii) in respect of this instrument - (ii) that it is of political or legal 
importance or gives rise to issues of public policy likely to be of 
interest to the Assembly. 
 
Article 5 contains the following unusual provision – 
“The Welsh Ministers may make such provision giving full effect to or 
otherwise supplementing the provisions of this Order (other than 
provision conferring or imposing functions as mentioned in section 
108(6) of the 2002 Act) as appears to them to be expedient.” 
 
The enabling power is section 108(11) of the Education Act 2002 
which reads as follows- 
“An order under subsection (2)(b)(iii) or (3)(c) may authorise the 
making of such provisions giving full effect to or otherwise 
supplementing the provisions made by the order (other than provision 
conferring or imposing functions as mentioned in subsection (6) or (7)) 
as appear to the Welsh Ministers to be expedient; and any provisions 
made under such an order shall, on being published as specified in 
the order, have effect for the purposes of this Part as if made by 
the order.” 
 
Thus Welsh Ministers will be able to make further provision to give full 
effect to or supplement the provisions of the current Order without 

Page 16



having to make an amending order that would be subject to Assembly 
scrutiny.  Nevertheless, it is a power that has been used on a number 
of occasions by the Assembly (to which the power was originally 
granted) and by Welsh Ministers (to whom the power was transferred 
following the Government of Wales Act 2006. 
 
This is not an unusual or unexpected use of the power in section 
108(11), which would be reported under Standing Order 21.2(ii), but a 
power that is itself unusual, and therefore of importance.   

 

David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
19 September 2011 
 

Page 17



Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
(CLA(4)-05-11) 
 
CLA32 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Report  

 
Title: The National Curriculum (End of Foundation Phase 
Assessment Arrangements and Revocation of the First Key Stage 
Assessment Arrangements) (Wales) Order 2011 
 
Procedure:  Negative 

 
Under section 108(2)(b)(iii) of the Education Act 2002  the Welsh 
Ministers may specify by order, such assessment arrangements as they 
consider appropriate for the foundation phase.  This Order provides 
for pupils to be assessed in the final year of the foundation phase by a 
teacher, and sets out the purpose of such assessments. 
 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument. 
 
Merits Scrutiny 
 
The Assembly is invited to pay special attention under Standing Order 
21.3(ii) in respect of this instrument - (ii) that it is of political or legal 
importance or gives rise to issues of public policy likely to be of 
interest to the Assembly. 
 
Article 5 contains the following unusual provision – 
“The Welsh Ministers may make such provision giving full effect to or 
otherwise supplementing the provisions of this Order (other than 
provision conferring or imposing functions as mentioned in section 
108(6) of the 2002 Act) as appears to them to be expedient.” 
 
The enabling power is section 108(11) of the Education Act 2002 
which reads as follows- 
“An order under subsection (2)(b)(iii) or (3)(c) may authorise the 
making of such provisions giving full effect to or otherwise 
supplementing the provisions made by the order (other than provision 
conferring or imposing functions as mentioned in subsection (6) or (7)) 
as appear to the Welsh Ministers to be expedient; and any provisions 
made under such an order shall, on being published as specified in 
the order, have effect for the purposes of this Part as if made by 
the order.” 
 

Page 18



Thus Welsh Ministers will be able to make further provision to give full 
effect to or supplement the provisions of the current Order without 
having to make an amending order that would be subject to Assembly 
scrutiny.  Nevertheless, it is a power that has been used on a number 
of occasions by the Assembly (to which the power was originally 
granted) and by Welsh Ministers (to whom the power was transferred 
following the Government of Wales Act 2006. 
 
This is not an unusual or unexpected use of the power in section 
108(11), which would be reported under Standing Order 21.2(ii), but a 
power that is itself unusual, and therefore of importance.   

 

David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
19 September 2011 
 

Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Y Pwyllgor Materion 
Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol 
 
Constitutional and Legislative 
Affairs Committee  
 

 

Lesley Griffiths AM 
Minister for Health and Social Services   
Welsh Government 
5th Floor, Tŷ Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

 
 
 

5 October  2011 
 

 
 
Dear Lesley  

 
CLA42 - The Protection from Tobacco (Sales from Vending Machines) 
(Wales) Regulations 2011 
 
The Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee considered the above 
Statutory Instrument at its meeting on 3 October 2011.   
 
The Committee noted that the regulations come into effect on 1 February next 
year but that the equivalent regulations came into effect in England on 1 
October this year.   
 
Welsh Government spokespersons have explained that the delay in Wales was 
due to legal challenges to the equivalent regulations in England.  The 
Committee would be grateful if you could confirm that this is the reason for 
the delay and why it is that legal action has delayed the introduction of the 
Welsh regulations but not the regulations that were the subject of the legal 
challenge? 
 
I understand that these regulations are to be debated in Plenary on 18 October.  
It would be helpful to Plenary consideration of the regulations if you could 
reply before the Plenary debate and if your reply could be made available to all 
Assembly Members as a supporting document for the debate. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 22



Lesley Griffiths AC / AM
Y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay

Caerdydd • Cardiff

CF99 1NA

English Enquiry Line  0845 010 3300

Llinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg  0845 010 4400

                Correspondence.lesley.Griffiths@wales.gsi.gov.uk

Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu (100%)                            Printed on 100% recycled paper

David Melding AM
Chair

Constitutional and Legislative 
Affairs Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay
Cardiff
CF99 1NA

Dear David

Thank you for your letter of 5 October concerning the coming into force date of the 
Protection from Tobacco (Sales from Vending Machines) (Wales) Regulations 2011.

The Welsh Government consulted on the draft regulations in April 2010, which included a 
proposed coming into force date of 1 October 2011.  However, legal challenges from the 
tobacco industry have raised timetabling issues.  

In February 2010 Sinclair Collis, a tobacco vending machine operator and subsidiary of 
Imperial Tobacco, wrote to the Department of Health indicating that they intended to apply 
for a judicial review of section 22 of the Health Act 2009. After an exchange of 
correspondence with the Department of Health, Sinclair Collis made an application for 
judicial review. Section 22 of the Health Act 2009 is the section which gives the Secretary of 
State in relation to England, and Welsh Ministers in relation to Wales, the power to ban the 
sale of tobacco from vending machines. Sinclair Collis argued that section 22 of the Act 
breaches article 34 of the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union (TEFU), as a 
ban on tobacco vending machines would constitute a restriction, without justification, on the 
free movement of goods between European Union Member States and, as such, would 
infringe article 34. They further argued that such a ban would amount to an unjustified 
interference with the property of Sinclair Collis contrary to Article 1 to the First Protocol of 
the European Convention on Human Rights.  

Sinclair Collis also submitted a second application for judicial review challenging the making 
of the Tobacco (Sales from Vending Machines) (England) Regulations 2010. The two 
applications were consolidated. 

11th October 2011

Page 23



If the Welsh Ministers had made the Protection from Tobacco (Sales from Vending 
Machines) (Wales) Regulations before the judicial review proceedings were concluded, it 
was anticipated that Welsh Ministers would be joined as a party to the judicial review action 
that was ongoing against the Secretary of State. The reason for this view is that the Welsh 
Regulations are identical in content and rely upon the same legal powers as those of the 
Secretary of State. The disadvantage to being added as a party to the proceedings would 
be the considerable legal costs that would be incurred in defending the judicial review 
action. Further, if the judicial review action had been successful any Regulations made 
under section 22 of the Health Act 2009 would have been quashed. 

In view of the uncertainties raised by the judicial review proceedings and the desirability of 
avoiding Welsh Ministers’ involvement in these proceedings, no action was taken to make 
the Welsh Regulations until the outcome of the judicial review was known.   As the Judicial 
Review action completed in August, when Sinclair Collis’ application to take their case to the 
Supreme Court was turned down, Welsh Ministers decided to bring forward the Regulations 
banning the sale of tobacco from vending machines in Wales. In the consultation report the 
Welsh Government committed to allowing appropriate time for businesses to implement the 
legislation and as such it is proposed for the Regulations to come into force 1 February 
2012.

I am happy for this reply to be used in support of the debate on 18 October and I will 
arrange for it to be made available as a supporting document on the agenda.

Lesley Griffiths AC / AM

Y Gweinidog Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol
Minister for Health and Social Services 

Page 24



Y Pwyllgor Materion 
Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol 
 
Constitutional and Legislative 
Affairs Committee  
 

 

Leighton Andrews AM  
Minister for Education and Skills  

Welsh Government 
5th Floor, Tŷ Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

 
 
 

27 September  2011 
 

Dear Minister  

 
CLA19 - The Head Teachers’ Qualifications and Registration (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2011 
 
The Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee considered the above 
Statutory Instrument at its meeting on 19 September 2011 and agreed that I 
should bring to your attention the Committee’s report made under Standing 
Order 21.3 on the merits of the Instrument.  
 
The Committee agreed to invite the Assembly to pay special attention to this 
Instrument on the grounds “that it is of political or legal importance or gives 
rise to issues of public policy likely to be of interest to the Assembly” (Standing 
Order 21.3(ii)). 
 
The Committee’s report was laid in the Table Office on 23 September 2011 and 
is attached for information. I would be grateful if you could consider the report 
and let the Committee have your response in due course.  In particular, the 
Committee would be grateful for clarification of the timescale and location of 
the pilot of the National Professional Qualification for Headship, that the 
Regulations facilitate and whether it is your intention to keep Assembly 
Members informed of the outcome of the trial.   
 
I am copying this report to the First Minister for information and have also 
arranged for the report and this letter to be drawn to the attention of Assembly 
Members. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  

Agenda Item 4.4

Page 25



Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
(CLA(4)-05-11) 
 
CLA19 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Report  

 
Title: The Head Teachers’ Qualifications and Registration (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2011 

 
Procedure:  Negative 

 
These Regulations amend the Head Teachers’ Qualifications and 
Registration (Wales) Regulations 2005 by altering the definition of “The 
National Professional Qualification for Headship in Wales” (NPHQ) in 
regulation 3(2) of those regulations.   The requirements of the NPHQ 
will change from completion of a course of training approved by the 
Welsh Ministers to the fulfilment of certain standards approved by the 
Welsh Ministers.   
 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument. 
 
Merits Scrutiny 
 
Under Standing Order 21.3 the Assembly is invited to pay special 
attention to the following instrument:- 
 
These regulations come on the back of an Estyn report on the NPQH 
and the Welsh Government’s own research.  The Estyn report found 
the qualification ineffective and that: 
 
� the supply of NPQH holders far exceeds the demand for 

headteachers in Wales; 
� the current selection process does not necessarily identify the 

most suitable people for headship; and 
� the content of the programme needs to be revised. 

 
Teaching unions have been quoted in the Times Educational 
Supplement as welcoming the overhaul in the NPQH, but they 
expressed concerns that the supply of heads could be damaged if 
there is no immediate replacement, and concerns about funding for 
leadership training.  In response the Welsh Government said that 
funding for NPQH was not being withdrawn and the current cohort of 
candidates will complete their programme.  A pilot for the revised 
NPQH began earlier this year. 

Page 26



 

David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
19 September 2011 
 

Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Y Pwyllgor Materion 
Cyfansoddiadol a 
Deddfwriaethol 
 
Constitutional and Legislative 
Affairs Committee  
 

 

Lesley Griffiths AM 
Minister for Health and Social Services 
Welsh Government 
5th Floor, Tŷ Hywel 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd / Cardiff 

CF99 1NA 

 
 
 

27 September  2011 
 

Dear Minister  

 
CLA17 - The National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and Redress 
Arrangements) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2011 
 
The Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee considered the above 
Statutory Instrument at its meeting on 19 September 2011 and agreed that I 
should bring to your attention the Committee’s report made under Standing 
Order 21.3 on the merits of the Instrument.  
 
The Committee agreed to invite the Assembly to pay special attention to this 
Instrument on the grounds “that it is of political or legal importance or gives 
rise to issues of public policy likely to be of interest to the Assembly” (Standing 
Order 21.3(ii)). 
 
The Committee’s report was laid in the Table Office on 23 September 2011 and 
is attached for information. I would be grateful if you could consider the report 
and let the Committee have your response in due course.  In particular, the 
Committee would be grateful for your views on whether you are satisfied that 
the delay in bringing into force of Part 7 of the principal Regulations is 
adequate to allow for detailed operational arrangements to be agreed with NHS 
bodies elsewhere in the UK.  
 
I am copying this report to the First Minister for information and have also 
arranged for the report and this letter to be drawn to the attention of Assembly 
Members. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  

Agenda Item 4.5

Page 30



 
 

 

Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 
(CLA(4)-05-11) 
 
CLA17 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Draft Report 
 
Title: The National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and 
Redress Arrangements) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2011 

 
Procedure:  Negative 

 
These Regulations amend the National Health Service (Concerns, 
Complaints and Redress Arrangements) (Wales) Regulations 2011 (“the 
principal Regulations”). 
Regulation 2(1) delays the coming into force of Part 7 of the principal 
Regulations from 1 October 2011 to 1 April 2012.   Part 7 of the 
principal Regulations deals with how redress is to be provided where 
an NHS Trust in Wales or a Local Health Board in Wales enters into an 
arrangement for the provision of health services with an NHS body in 
England, Scotland or Northern Ireland.     
 
Technical Scrutiny 
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument. 
 
Merits Scrutiny 
 
The Committee makes the following report to the Assembly under 
Standing Order 21.3(ii) that these regulations are of political or legal 
importance and give rise to issues of public policy likely to be of 
interest to the Assembly. 
 
Background 
 
The NHS Redress (Wales) Measure 2008 was the first Assembly 
Measure to be passed by the Assembly. The Measure enables Welsh 
Ministers to make Regulations, which allow for redress to be provided 
in circumstances where there is a qualifying liability in tort in relation 
to the provision of qualifying services. Redress may encompass 
apologies, explanations, action plans, remedial treatment and, if 
appropriate, financial compensation. 
 
The first set of regulations made by Welsh Ministers under this 
Measure was The National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and 
Redress Arrangements) (Wales) Regulations 2011 (“the principal 

Page 31



 
 

 

regulations”) which were laid by the then Minister for Health and Social 
Services, Edwina Hart AM, on 7 February 2011. 
 
The objective of the principal regulations is to make it easier for 
patients to raise concerns if they are dissatisfied or if things go wrong 
with their NHS care. They also aim to ensure that the NHS approach to 
such situations is more consistent and results in a fairer outcome for 
patients and staff. 
 
In 2007, the then Subordinate Legislation Committee took evidence 
and reported on the Measure. The Committee recommended a strong 
level of scrutiny for Regulations made under the Measure and that 
there should be widespread consultation on the Regulations. 
 
The principal regulations were considered by the Constitutional Affairs 
Committee of the third Assembly on 17 February 2011. That 
Committee produced a merits report on the principal regulations and 
made the following comments: 
 

“We have considered the current Regulations in relation to the 
issues raised above, particularly whether the Regulations have 
been subject to adequate consultation and whether the 
Regulations as presented adequately reflect issues raised during 
consultation … 

 
While we believe that the general concerns about ‘Framework’ 
Measures remain valid (and while we note the considerable 
amount of time that has elapsed since the Measure was passed), 
we are content that consultation in respect of these draft 
Regulations has in our view been thorough, inclusive and 
responsive to concerns during it.” 

 
The principal regulations were subject to the affirmative procedure 
and were approved by the Assembly in plenary on 8 March 2011. They 
came into force on 1 April 2011, except for provisions in Part 7 of the 
regulations which were initially due to come into force on 1 October 
2011. 
 
The National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and Redress 
Arrangements) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2011 (“the amending 
regulations”) were tabled by the Minister for Health and Social Services, 
Lesley Griffiths AM, on 12 July 2011. 
 
The objective of the amending regulations is to delay the coming into 
force of Part 7 of the principal Regulations, which deal with cross-
border arrangements, from 1 October 2011 to 1 April 2012. 
 
This is deemed necessary by the Welsh Government to allow for the 
detailed operational arrangements to be agreed between Welsh and 

Page 32



 
 

 

other UK NHS bodies. According to the accompanying Explanatory 
Memorandum: 
 

“The reason for this change is to allow more time for this work 
to be completed since the initial assessment that a coming into 
force date of 1 October 2011 would be sufficient time to agree 
these amendments, is not now achievable.” 

 
An additional amendment is made to regulation 52(5) of the principal 
regulations to reflect the new coming into force date for Part 7 of the 
Regulations and makes it clear that the cross border arrangements 
outlined in Part 7 will not apply to services provided by English NHS 
bodies, Scottish NHS bodies or Northern Irish NHS bodies on behalf of 
Welsh NHS bodies before 1 April 2012.  
 
Consideration by the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
 
While we agree with the Constitutional Affairs Committee of the third 
Assembly that the principal regulations adequately reflect issues 
raised during consultation, the introduction of the amending 
regulations suggest that there may have been insufficient consultation 
with NHS bodies in other parts of the UK in relation to cross-border 
issues. 
 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
19 September 2011 
 

Page 33



Page 34



 1 

 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
Report: CLA(4)-07-11 : 10 October 2011 
 
The Committee reports to the Assembly as follows: 
 
Instruments that raise no reporting issues under Standing Order 
21.2 or 21.3 
 
Negative Resolution Instruments 
 
CLA44 - The Trade in Animals and Related Products (Wales) 
Regulations 2011 
Procedure: Negative. 
Date made: 28 September 2011 
Date laid: 28 September 2011 
Coming into force date: 19 October 2011 
 
CLA45 - The Poultry Health Scheme (Fees) (Wales) Regulations 
2011 
Procedure: Negative. 
Date made: 28 September 2011 
Date laid: 28 September 2011 
Coming into force date:  19 October 2011 
 
Instruments that raise reporting issues under Standing Order 21.2 
or 21.3 
 
Negative Resolution Instruments 
 
CLA43 - The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (No. 2) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011 
Procedure: Negative. 
Date made: 27 September 2011 
Date laid: 28 September 2011 
Coming into force date: in accordance with regulation 31 
 
The Committee agreed the Report under Standing Order 21.3 on this 
statutory instrument, which is attached as Annex 1. 
 
Other Business 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 35



 2 

Committee Inquiries: Inquiry into the Granting of Powers to Welsh 
Ministers in UK Laws 
 
The Committee took oral evidence from Dr. Paul Cairney, Senior 
Lecturer in politics and international relations, University of Aberdeen. 
 
Resolution to Meet in Private 
 
In accordance with Standing Order 17.42(vi) the Committee resolved to 
exclude the public from the remainder of the meeting to discuss the 
evidence submitted thus far on the Inquiry into the Granting of Powers 
to Welsh Ministers in UK Laws. 
 
David Melding AM 
Chair, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
10 October 2011 

Page 36



 3 

Annex 1 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee  
 
(CLA(4)-07-11) 
 
CLA43 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee Report  

 
Title: The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (No. 2) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011 
 
Procedure: Negative 
 
These Regulations enforce, in Wales, Regulation (EC) No. 1069/2009 
of the European Parliament and of the Council on laying down health 
rules as regards animal by-products and derived products not intended 
for human consumption and repealing Regulation (EC) No. 1774/2002 
(“the EU Control Regulation”). These Regulations also enforce in Wales, 
Regulation No. 142/2011 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 
1069/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down 
health rules as regards animal by-products and derived products not 
intended for human consumption and implementing Council Directive 
97/78/EC as regards certain samples and items exempt from 
veterinary checks at the border under that Directive (“the EU 
Implementing Regulation”) that provides technical supplementation of 
those requirements of the EU Control Regulation. These Regulations 
revoke and replace the Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011. 
 
Technical Scrutiny  
 
No points are identified for reporting under Standing Order 21.2 in 
respect of this instrument at this stage- 
 
Merits Scrutiny  
 
The Third Assembly’s Constitutional Affairs Committee (CA 
Committee) considered “The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) 
Regulations 2011” (CA553) on 17 March 2011.  The regulations now 
before the Committee (the Number 2 Regulations) revoke and replace 
those earlier regulations (the original regulations). 
 
The original regulations were introduced in breach of the 21 day rule 
to ensure that there was no “enforcement gap” between them and a 
previous enforcement regime.  The CA Committee reported on a 
considerable number of technical deficiencies in the original 
regulations as well as wider points on the merits of the regulations.  

Page 37



 4 

There seems little doubt that many of the technical deficiencies, 
including that the regulations were made in English only, were caused 
by the urgency with which they were made. 
 
The original regulations also raised substantive merits points including 
human rights concerns about relatively unfettered rights of entry to 
private dwelling houses and concerns at the proportionality of 
penalties that could be imposed under the regulations.  The 
Committee’s report on the original regulations is attached for 
information.  
 
By contrast, the Committee is pleased to note that no technical 
deficiencies have been identified in the number 2 regulations, which 
are being made in both Welsh and English. 
 
The Committee is also pleased to note that the number 2 regulations 
now contain provisions that protect private householders through the 
explicit provision of a requirement to obtain a warrant to enforce the 
right of entry.   
 
Although the penalties in the number 2 regulations are the same as 
those in the original regulations, the Explanatory Memorandum 
explains that the penalties are identical to those in use in England and 
that non-compliance with the provisions of the Regulations could lead 
to potential severe risks to human and animal health.  The penalties 
reflect the seriousness of this risk and the Committee is content to 
accept the Government’s judgement on this point. 
 
In view of the previous Committee’s concerns about the original 
regulations, the Committee believes it is important to place on the 
public record that these concerns do not arise in respect of the 
number 2 regulations.   
 
The Committee agrees, therefore, to report that the Assembly should 
pay special attention to these regulations as giving rise to matters of 
political or legal importance likely to be of interest to the Assembly.  
[Standing Order 21.3(ii)] 
 
 
Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
October 2011 

Page 38



 5 

 

Annex to the Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee 
Report on CLA43 (The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (No. 2) 
(Wales) Regulations 2011) 
 
Constitutional Affairs Committee Report 
 
CA553 
 
Title: The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 
2011 
 
Procedure: Negative 
 
These Regulations enforce, in Wales, Regulation (EC) No. 1069/2009 
of the European Parliament and of the Council on laying down health 
rules as regards animal by-products and derived products not intended 
for human consumption and repealing Regulation (EC) No. 1774/2002 
(“the EU Control Regulation”). These Regulations also enforce, in Wales, 
Regulation No. 142/2011 implementing Regulation (EC) No. 
1069/2009 of the European Parliament and of the Council laying down 
health rules as regards animal by-products and derived products not 
intended for human consumption and implementing Council Directive 
97/78/EC as regards certain samples and items exempt from 
veterinary checks at the border under that Directive (“the EU 
Implementing Regulation”) that provides technical supplementation of 
those requirements of the EU Control Regulation. 
 
Technical Scrutiny  
 
Under Standing Orders 15.2 the Assembly is invited to pay special 
attention to the following instrument:- 
 
1. Regulation 24 (Powers of entry and additional powers) provides for 
an authorised person to enter premises at all reasonable hours for the 
purpose of ensuring the compliance of the EU Control Regulation, the 
EU Implementing Regulation and these Regulations. “Premises” are 
defined within these Regulations as including “any domestic premises”. 
Regulation 24 does not state either expressly or by way of implication 
that a warrant pursuant to regulation 25 must be applied for before 
the power of entry is exercised under regulation 24. Consequently, an 
authorised person appears to have the power to enter domestic 
premises without applying for a warrant under regulation 25.  
 
1.1 The absence of a safeguard to apply for a warrant before an 
authorised person may enter domestic premises may constitute an 
infringement of Article 8 of the European Convention of Human Rights 
(“ECHR”) which provides for the right to respect for private and family 

Page 39



 6 

life, and home and correspondence and section 81 of the Government 
of Wales Act 2006 (“GOWA”), which states that Welsh Ministers have no 
power to make subordinate legislation which is incompatible with any 
of the Convention Rights. 
 
These Regulations raise issues similar to those reported by the 
Committee in relation to the Eggs and Chicks (Wales) Regulations 2010 
(“the Eggs Regulations”), regarding the possibility of entry without a 
warrant. These Regulations and the Eggs Regulations can be compared 
with the Eggs and Chicks (Wales) Regulations 2009 which contained no 
similar provision, as the 2009 Regulations relied on the power of entry 
contained in section 32 of the Food Safety Act 1990, which contained 
the safeguard of a requirement to obtain a warrant from a magistrate 
who had to be satisfied of certain requirements before the power of 
entry could be exercised.  It is not apparent why the power of entry 
provision in these Regulations has no equivalent safeguard, and why 
the omission of such a safeguard has occurred  
Standing Order 15.2 (i) that there appears to be doubt as to whether it 
is intra vires). .   
 
See further reporting point 1 under Standing Order 15.3 which deals 
with merits reporting points. 
 
(Alternatively, regulation 25 may have been intended to provide such a 
safeguard, but the absence of a clear explanation on the face of the 
Regulations would constitute defective drafting reportable under 
Standing Order 15.2 (vi). 
 
2. Paragraph 60 of Schedule 2 (Consequential Amendments) seeks to 
amend the Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011(“the 2011 
Regulations”). The 2011 Regulations are currently in draft form and 
have not yet been laid before Parliament or the National Assembly for 
Wales under section 2 (8) and (9) (d) and (e) of the Pollution Prevention 
and Control Act 1999, para 2 (2) of Schedule 2 to the European 
Communities Act 1972 and section 59 (3) of the Government of Wales 
Act 2006 for approval by resolution, and consequently have not yet 
been made as a UK draft statutory instrument.   
 
2.1 Section 14 of the Interpretation Act 1978 states that where an Act 
confers power to make subordinate legislation, it implies unless the 
contrary intention appears, a power to...amend any instrument made 
under the power. However as 2011 Regulations are in draft form only, 
and have yet to be laid or made, it is doubtful whether such a power 
could be implied in this case, and consequently that the 2011 
Regulations can be amended before properly being laid and made  as a 
statutory instrument. 
 
 

Page 40



 7 

(Standing Order 15.2 (i) and (ii) that there appears to be doubt as to 
whether it is intra vires; and that it appears to make unusual or 
unexpected use of the powers conferred by the enactment under 
which it is made or to be made).  
 
3. These Regulations are provided in English only. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (ix) that it is not made or to be made in both 
English and Welsh).   
 
 
4. It is unclear from regulation 8 (Collection centres for feeding in 
relation to Article 18 (1) of the EU Control Regulation), due to the lack 
of clarity of missing text, whether “a processing plant for Category 2 
material is authorised as a collection centre for Category 2 material” 
for “the purposes of Article 18 (1) of the EU Control Regulation…” 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears to be defective or it 
fails to fulfil statutory requirements). 
 
5. Paragraph (a) of Regulation 12 (Notifications of competent authority 
in respect of registration), does not read correctly and consequently 
lacks clarity, failing to confirm effective notification provisions 
concerning the operator. 
 
6. Paragraph 1 of regulation 16 (Appeals procedure), erroneously 
refers to a “notification” being made in regulation 15 (2), as opposed 
to a “decision”.  
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears to be defective or it 
fails to fulfil statutory requirements). 
 
7. Sub-paragraph (b) paragraph (1) of regulation 21 (Enforcement 
authority), refers to “the 1984 Act” (which is only referred to once) and 
without being defined until paragraph (6), which appears on the 
subsequent page. Consequently, given that the 1984 Act is only 
referred to once and is defined on the subsequent page, the reference 
to the Act as “the 1984 Act” is superfluous and the definition could be 
provided the first time it appears in order to provide  clarity to the 
reader. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirements).  
 
 
8. Schedule 1(Animal By-Product Requirements), paragraphs 9 and 10, 
refer to “Registration of operators, establishments and plants” and 
“Approval of establishments and plants” respectively, when the 
provisions should refer to “Registration of operators, establishments 

Page 41



 8 

or plants” and “Approval of establishments or plants” respectively in 
order properly to reflect the titles of Articles 23 and 24 of the EU 
Control Regulation. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirements).  
 
9. Schedule 1 (Animal By-Products Requirements), paragraph 11 refers 
to “General hygiene conditions” when the correct title of Article 25 of 
the EU Control Regulation to which it refers is “General hygiene 
requirements”. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirements).  
 
10. Column 3 of Paragraph 23 (Controls for dispatch) of Schedule 1 
(Animal By-Product Requirements), erroneously refers to the EC 
Control Regulation when the Articles to which column 3 refers (Articles 
11, 12 and 31 respectively) actually pertain to the EC Implementing 
Regulation. 
 
 
11. Paragraph 17 (b) of Schedule 2 (Animal By-Products Requirements) 
which makes amendments to the Products of Animal Origin (Import 
and Export) Regulations 1996 (“the Animal 1996 Regulations”), refers 
to paragraph 15 being the requisite paragraph which deals with wild 
game, when the title of the paragraph within the 1996 Regulations 
that deals with wild game is 13. The paragraph within Schedule 3 of 
the 1996 Regulations which deals with wild game is incorrectly 
numbered 13 when it should already be numbered 15, so in the first 
instance the paragraph needs amendment so that it is correctly 
numbered 15 before the current amendment proposed by regulation 
17 (b) in the current Regulations will operate effectively. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement). 
 
12. Paragraph 19 of Schedule 2 of these Regulations which amends 
the Foot and Mouth Disease (Wales) Order 2006 (“the 2006 Order”), 
refers to an insertion within article 2 (1) (interpretation) of the 2006 
Order, when the correct article within the 2006 Order which deals with 
the interpretation provisions is article 3.  
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement). 
 
13. The form of wording which paragraph 20 of Schedule 2 to these 
Regulations states is required to be substituted by a new form of 
wording within article 26 (slaughter; control of faecal material) of the 

Page 42



 9 

2006 Order does not already exist in its entirety within article 26. 
Paragraph 20 states that “point 5 of Section II in Part A of Chapter III of 
Annex VIII to Regulation (EC) No. 1774/2002 of the European 
Parliament and of the Council laying down health rules concerning 
animal by-products not intended for human consumption, as 
amended” is the current form of wording within article 26 when the 
correct form of wording reads as “point 5 of Section II in Part A of 
Chapter III of Annex VIII to Regulation (EC) No. 1774/2002 and under 
the authority of a licence granted by the National Assembly of Wales.” 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement). 
 
14. Paragraphs 21 to 23 of Schedule 2 to these Regulations which 
substitute a form of wording for a new form of wording within the 
2006 Order refers to the form of wording to be substituted “as 
amended”. For example paragraph 21 substitutes “Regulations (EC No. 
1774/2002, as amended” when the words “as amended” do not exist 
within article 27 (2) (c) (slaughter: isolation of things liable to spread 
disease). Consequently, the aims to be achieved by the substitution 
will not be met. Regulation (EU) No. 1069/2009 which substitutes EC 
No. 1774/2002 when inserted will not be inserted “as amended”.  
 
Substitutions of this nature occur on nine occasions within the 2006 
Order and due to the inaccuracy will fail on each occasion.       
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement). 
 
15. Paragraph 27 of Schedule 2 to these Regulations which amends 
the Animals and Animal Products (Import and Export) (Wales) 
Regulation 2006 (“Animal Import and Export Regulations 2006”) 
substitutes a new provision for paragraph 7 (Animal waste) within Part 
1 of Schedule 3 of the Animal Import and Export Regulations 2006. 
The new provision to be substituted is erroneously numbered 
paragraph 8, when as it is substituting paragraph 7 it should also be 
numbered 7.  
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement).  
 
16. Paragraph 41 of Schedule 2 to these Regulations refers to sub-
paragraph (1) within paragraph (2) of article 14 of the Avian Influenza 
(H5N1 in Poultry) (Wales) Order 2006 (“Avian 2006 Order”) which is to 
be substituted for the exiting paragraph 2 of article 14. Sub-paragraph 
2 states that a veterinary inspector or an inspector acting under the 
direction of a veterinary inspector may not grant or direct the grant of 
a licence under sub-paragraph (1)…”. Sub-paragraph (1) of paragraph 
(2) of article 14, does not refer to the granting or the directing of the 

Page 43



 10 

granting of licences, and so the reference to sub-paragraph (1) is 
incorrect. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement). 
 
17. Schedule 3, column 1 of these Regulations refers to the Animal By-
Products (Wales) Regulations 200” to be revoked. Consequently it is 
not known what Regulations it is intended are to be revoked. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement).  
 
18. The Products of Animal Origin (Third Country Imports) (Wales) 
Regulations 2006 (S.I. 2006/376”), are not in existence or/and the title 
and the S.I. reference is inaccurate. S.I. 2006/376 refers to the Penalty 
Charges (Exemption from Criminal Proceedings) Regulations (Northern 
Ireland) 2006, and the Stirling (Electoral Arrangements) Order 2006 
respectively. Consequently it is not certain what Regulations the 
provision is intended to revoke. 
 
(Standing Order 15.2 (vi) that its drafting appears defective or it fails 
to fulfil statutory requirement). 
 
Merits Scrutiny  
 
Under Standing Order 15.3 the Assembly is invited to pay special 
attention to the following instrument:- 
 
1. Power of entry:-Human Rights Implications 

 
This reporting point is based on the assumption that regulations 24 
and 25 were intended to be drafted as they appear.  If the intention 
was to make regulation 24 subject to regulation 25, the problem lies 
with the drafting rather than the intention, and the drafting should be 
corrected before the power is misused. 

 
The carrying out of a search on a private dwelling house without a 
warrant pursuant to regulation 24 of these Regulations must be 
legitimate in order to secure the aim to be achieved. The power of 
entry within regulation 24 does not make the entry conditional upon a 
warrant being applied for within regulation 25, and does not require 
notice to be given to an occupier of a dwelling-house beforehand 
either. This provision can be compared with the Eggs and Chicks 
(Wales) Regulations 2010 where at least a notice period of 24 hours 
must be given to the occupier, however even in that scenario if the 
occupier was not present at the premises when notice was served, 
then it was possible that no notice may be received by the occupier 

Page 44



 11 

prior to an entry being carried out, which would be tantamount to a 
power of entry demanded as of right, as in these Regulations. 
 
1.2. Is the entry and intrusion of privacy proportionate to the 
legitimate aim being pursued? The legitimate aim being pursued 
would be ensuring compliance with the Regulations, and therefore the 
prevention of a crime. A person guilty of contravening regulation 17 
(1) (Offence in respect of EU Control Regulation) and 18 (Offence of 
obstruction) under regulation 20 would be liable on summary 
conviction to a fine not exceeding the statutory maximum or to 
imprisonment not exceeding three months or both; or on conviction 
on indictment, to a fine or to imprisonment for a term not exceeding 
two years, or both. 
 
1.3 Consequently is a power of entry into a dwelling house without a 
warrant and without notice proportionate to the severity of the crime, 
for example the obstruction of an authorised person? Compare, for 
example the situation where Police can only enter premises without a 
warrant if a serious or dangerous incident has taken place, such as a 
breach of the peace or prevention thereof, enforcing an arrest warrant, 
arresting a person in connection with certain offences, recapturing 
someone who has escaped from custody and save life or prevent 
serious damage to property. 
 
 
1.4. The Committee may wish to consider the following:- 
 
The Code of Practice under the Powers of Entry Bill which applied to 
private premises as well as business premises stated that “Any 
exercise of a power of entry to private property is likely to involve a 
conflict with the right to private life guaranteed by Article 8 of the 
ECHR.” A power of entry without consent should only be used when it 
is necessary to achieve its purpose, and the way in which the power is 
used must be proportionate to that purpose. The Bill has not become 
law, but it was intended that the Bill provide for the regulation of the 
power of entry in respect of both specified primary and secondary 
legislation within the Bill. 
 
1.5 The European Court of Human Rights takes a robust approach to 
powers of entry, search and seizure. These powers are invasive and 
must be accompanied by clear justification in order to meet the 
requirements of Article 8(2) ECHR that any interference with the right 
to respect for private life and the home is necessary. The legislative 
framework for these powers must afford adequate and effective 
safeguards against abuse in practice. Whether the safeguards in the 
Bill are adequate to meet the requirements of Article 8(2) ECHR will 
depend on the nature, scope and duration of the proposed powers of 
entry, search and seizure, the circumstances in which they will be 
authorised, the identity of the individuals authorised to conduct them, 

Page 45



 12 

and the remedies provided by national law. An individual adversely 
affected by the exercise of these powers must have access to an 
effective remedy for any alleged breach of their Convention rights as 
guaranteed by Article 13 ECHR. 
 
1.6 The Joint Committee on considering the Tribunals Courts and 
Enforcement then Bill found that the Bill proposed that, in certain 
circumstances, a certified enforcement agent would be able to enter 
any "relevant premises" without a warrant.[99] Relevant premises are 
any premises where an enforcement agent "reasonably believes" that 
the debtor "usually lives" or carries on a trade or business (including 
third party premises). If powers of entry without a warrant are 
intended to be limited to the premises identified by the information in 
the relevant judgment, warrant or writ, then the Committee considered 
that this should be clearly expressed on the face of the Bill. The 
Committee recommended that the Bill be amended accordingly and 
stated that it is important to ensure that these new statutory powers 
are not misunderstood, or misrepresented, in order to protect the 
rights of debtors' families and third parties against unnecessary or 
disproportionate invasions of their right to respect for their private 
life. 
 
1.7 The Committee welcomed the Government’s amendment to clarify 
that the use of force to gain re-entry to premises used to carry out a 
trade or business without a warrant did not extend to the use of force 
to enter a dwelling or to do anything in a dwelling. The Committee 
considered that this amendment would ensure that reasonable force is 
not used by any certified enforcement agent to access any premises 
used in whole, or in part, as a residential property, without prior 
judicial authorisation, and that the amendment would provide a 
valuable safeguard for the rights of debtors and third parties to 
respect for private life and home, as guaranteed by Article 8 ECHR.  
 
1.8 With the above in mind the carrying out of a search on a private 
dwelling house without a warrant pursuant to regulation 25 of these 
Regulations, may not be proportionate to secure a legitimate aim 
under these Regulations, and consequently may be disproportionate to 
the legitimate aim pursued and breach Article 8 of the ECHR. 
 
2. Delay, Breach of 21 day rule and providing the Regulations in 
English only 
 
The European Regulation that these Regulations seek to enforce date 
back to February 2009, and consequently at least two years have 
elapsed within which legislation could have been enacted in order to 
give effect to the purposes of the 2009 EC Regulation (“the Control 
Regulation”). Despite, this these Regulations have breached the 21 day 
rule. The Minister’s response to this was provided in a letter to the 
Presiding Officer dated 3rd March 2011 which states that “the 

Page 46



 13 

requirement to breach the 21 day rule arises primarily because of 
delays in finalising the Implementing Regulations at an EU level, 
combined with further delays in finalising the legal text of the draft 
Statutory Instrument.” Both the EU Control Regulation and the EC 
Implementing Regulation came into force on 4 March 2011. However 
knowing that both Regulations were coming into force on this date, it 
is not clear why these Regulations were not prepared and laid at an 
earlier date so as not to breach the 21 day rule.   
 
2.1 Statutory Instrument Practice (4th edition November 2006) at 
paragraph 4.13.2 states that the 21 day period is to be treated as a 
minimum period in advance of an instrument coming into force. The 
Explanatory Memorandum states that “due to the public and animal 
health risks associated with a prolonged enforcement gap, it is 
necessary to breach the 21 day rule and produce the S.I. in English 
only in this instance.”  
 
2.2  On the other hand, when an instrument creates offences, as in 
this case, the 21 day rule is particularly important as it provides some 
assurance that members of the public can become aware of their legal 
duties before they come into force.  In this case the Regulations were 
made on the 2nd March and came into force two days later.  As this 
draft report is being prepared on the 14th March, these Regulations 
have still not been published, so individuals have no way of knowing 
that their conduct may be illegal. 
 
3. Disproportionality of penalty 
 
Regulation 20 (Penalties) of these Regulations does not limit the 
penalties to any of the offences. So a person found guilty of a 
summary only offence under regulation 18 (a) (Offence of obstruction) 
could potentially be fined an amount not exceeding the statutory 
maximum (which is £5,000) or to imprisonment not exceeding three 
months or both. As a comparison, a person found guilty of a summary 
offence of wilfully obstructing a police officer provided under section 
89 of the Police Act 1996, as well as having a term of imprisonment 
imposed (previously one month but now 51 weeks as amended by the 
Criminal Justice Act 2003) could also be subject to a fine not 
exceeding level 3 which equates to £1,000. There is a substantial 
discrepancy in the amount of the fines that can be imposed for similar 
offences. Is the penalty disproportionate to the offence being 
committed? 
 
Janet Ryder AM 
Chair, Constitutional Affairs Committee 
 
17 March 2011 
 
The Government has responded as follows: 

Page 47



 14 

 
The Animal By-Products (Enforcement) (Wales) Regulations 2011 
"The Regulations were made urgently on the specific instructions of 
the Office of the Chief Veterinary Officer to ensure that there was no 
enforcement gap between the revocation of EC Regulation 1774/2002 
(regarding animal by-products issues) and the coming into force of its 
successor, EC Regulation 1069/2009, on 4th March 2011. Had there 
been an enforcement gap, certain activities that were subject to 
criminal penalties under the EC Regulation 1069/2009 from 4th March 
2011, would have evaded prosecution. In addition, an enforcement 
gap would have put the Welsh Ministers at risk of infraction 
proceedings by the Commission.  
 
The government's intention was to make the Regulations urgently in 
English only and in breach of the 21 day rule to ensure that there was 
no enforcement gap. It has always been intended that these English 
only Regulations would be a temporary short-term measure, to be 
followed at the earliest opportunity by bilingual Regulations which 
would revoke the English only Regulations. The bilingual Regulations 
will largely mirror the Defra Regulations (when they come into force in 
England) to ensure a commonality of enforcement provisions across 
the Member State as a whole. It is not known when the Defra 
Regulations will come into force, but as a result of their late 
implementation, there is currently an enforcement gap in England. 
 
The government wishes to stress that ensuring no enforcement gap by 
bringing the Regulations into force on 4th March 2011 was essential to 
ensure that any risks to animal and human health from animal by-
product issues were reduced to a minimum. Such risks could have 
been severe and without implementing legislation, breaches of the 
European legislation could have been unenforceable." 
  
 
 

Page 48


	Agenda
	3.1 CLA46 - The Local Inquiries, Qualifying Inquiries and Qualifying Procedures (Standard Daily Amount) (Wales) Regulations 2011
	CLA46 - Regulations
	CLA46 - Explanatory Memorandum

	4.1 CLA20 - The Beef and Pig Carcase Classification (Wales) Regulations 2011
	CLA(4)-08-11(p2) Œ The Minister™s response dated 1 October 2011

	4.2 CLA31 - The National Curriculum (Assessment Arrangements on Entry to the Foundation Phase) (Wales) Order 2011
	CLA(4)-08-11(p3) -  Annex 1 (CLA31 Report)
	CLA(4)-08-11(p3) - Annex 2 (CLA32 Report)
	CLA(4)-08-11(p4) Œ The Minister™s response dated 4 October 2011

	4.3 CLA42 - The Protection from Tobacco (Sales from Vending Machines) (Wales) Regulations 2011
	CLA(4)-08-11(p6) Œ The Minister™s response dated 11 October 2011

	4.4 CLA19 - The Head Teachers' Qualifications and Registration (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2011
	CLA(4)-08-11(p7) -  Annex (CLA19 Report)
	CLA(4)-08-11(p8) Œ The Minister™s response dated 10 October 2011

	4.5 CLA17 - The National Health Service (Concerns, Complaints and Redress Arrangements) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2011
	CLA(4)-08-11(p9) Œ Annex (CLA17 Report)
	CLA(4)-08-11(p10) Œ The Minister™s response dated 11October 2011

	6 Date of the next meeting

